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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of JSW Steel Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of JSW Steel Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS tinancial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis
for aur audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

SRBC&COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No AAB-4318
Regd Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Key audit matters

"How our audit addressed the key audit matter

E_:lél_ﬂr_ﬁi"h_nf mvestmes s W pnd Ieans [ o Janoet pvn |0 certain subsidiaries and a Joint
wifiluld A% Inhetld guprbhtees oae s 00 behall o £ erfain susasdlariesnas described in note 50 of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

The Company has investments in certain Our audit procedures included the following
subsidiaries and a joint venture with a carrying

value of Rs. 1,018 crores. Further, Company has e
also provided loans and/or guarantees to or on
behalf of these subsidiaries and the joint venture
amounting to Rs. 8,632 crores. These .
subsidiaries and joint venture, have either been
incurring losses or the investments made by

them in the step down subsidiaries have been .
making losses.

We have obtained and read management’s
assessment for identification of indicators of
impairment.

We performed test of controls over

impairment process through inspection of

evidence of performance of these controls.

Assessed the impairment model prepared by

the management and the assumptions used,

with particular attention to the following:

- Benchmarking or assessing key market
related assumptions wused in the
impairment models, including discount
rates, long term growth rate, risk free rate
of return, weight average cost of capital,
Production schedule against external

Assessment of the recoverable amount of the
investments in and loans/advances including
interest thereon given to these subsidiaries and a
joint venture and financial guarantees given on
behalf of these subsidiaries has been identified as
a key audit matter due to:

* Significance of the carrying amount of these

L

balances.

e The assessment requires management to

Further,

make significant estimates concerning the
estimated future cash flows, qualitative
assessments of the status of the project and
its future depending on balance work to be
performed or approvals to be received,
associated discount rates and growth rates
based on management's view of future
business prospects.

Changes to any of these assumptions could
lead to material changes in the estimated
recoverable amount, impacting both potential
impairment charges and also potential
reversals of impairment taken in prior years.

the Company has not recognized

interest income of Rs. 454 crores during the year
from some of its subsidiaries due to uncertainty
of recoverability of such income.

e

-
-

MUNMBAL 17
1
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data.

assessing the cash flow forecasts through
analysis of actual past performance and
comparison to previous forecasts;

testing the mathematical accuracy and
performing sensitivity analyses of the
models;

understanding the commercial prospects
of the assets/projects, and comparison of
assumptions with external data sources;

We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the experts used by the
Management in the process of evaluating
impairment models.

We assessed the compliance of the disclosures
made in note 50 of the standalone Ind AS
financial  statements  with  accounting
standards.
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Recoverabilm( of VAT deferral under the GST reaime (as described in note 29 of the standalone Ind

AS financial statements)

| The Company's units at Dolvi in Maharashtra and | Our audit procedures included the following

Vijayanagar in Karnataka are eligible and have
been availing for interest free VAT deferral loan | =
as an incentive under the incentive schemes
notified by the State of Maharashtra and
Karnataka.

The Company has recognised income in relation
these grants being the difference between the net
present value of these interest free loans granted
to the Company and the nominal value of such @ *®
loans to the extent of SGST collected by the
Company in respect of sales eligible for such
grants, in accordance with notifications issued by
the State of Maharashtra and Karnataka. *

The State Government of Maharashtra (‘GoM’)
vide its Government Resolution dated 20
December 2018, revised on 8 March 2019, has
issued the modalities for sanction and
disbursement of Incentives under GST regime,
which includes certain additional conditions for
eligibility and prescribed a new formula for
determination of the incentives.

The State Government of Karnataka vide its
circular dated 26 February 2019, has issued
guidelines for certification of the eligible incentive ' o
amount.

The amount of incentive recognized during the
year amounts to Rs. 1,111 crores and cumulative
balance of these receivables amount to Rs. 1,806
crores. =

We considered VAT deferral incentive as a Key
audit matter due to:

o Significance of amount accrued during
the year and carrying amount of these
receivables as at March 31, 2019. .

e Significant judgement involved in

assessment of the eligibility of incentive
under the new GST regime.

*| MUMBAI |2
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We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested operating effectiveness of
the controls related to the recognition of
government grants and income accruing
therefrom, including the controls in respect of
measurement of the grants.

We have read eligibility certificates in respect
of VAT deferral incentives available to
Company.

We have read the notification issued by the
Government of Maharashtra and Government
of Karnataka stating eligibility of VAT deferral
under the GST regime. |

We have read Government Resolution dated
20 December 2018 and revision made on 8
March 2019, issued by Government of
Maharashtra in respect of modalities for |
sanction and disbursement of Incentives
under GST regime.

We have read circular dated 26 February
2019 issued by the State Government of
Karnataka in respect of quidelines for
certification of the eligible incentive amount.

Read the legal opinion obtained by the
management for assessing the impact of new
eligibility ~ conditions and formula for
determination incentives based on latest
Government Resolution issued by GoM

We involved specialists to assist us in
reviewing and evaluating the management'’s
assessment of latest Government Resolution
issued by GoM.

We have tested the calculation of incentives
accrued for the year ended March 31, 2019.
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ALarany and complelnness ol osooure of realed gy Danaaciion and eonpilesce midn (ha
pravisions af Companios Act 2012 and SERI (Licting Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)

Regulations, 2015, as amended ('SERI (LODR)
AS financial statements)

We identified the accuracy and completeness of
disclosure of related party transactions as set out
in respective notes to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a key audit matter due to:

e the significance of transactions with
related parties during the year ended

March 31, 2019.

Related party transactions are subject to
the compliance requirement under the
Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
2015.

20185") (as described in note 43 of the standalone Ind

our procedures in relation to the disclosure of
related party transactions included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the
Company's policies and procedures in
respect of the capturing of related party
transactions and how management
ensures all transactions and balances

with related parties have been disclosed

in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.
& Obtaining an understanding of the

Company's policies and procedures in
respect of evaluating arms-length pricing
and approval process by the audit
committee and the board of directors.

Agreeing the amounts disclosed to
underlying documentation and reading
relevant agreements, evaluation of arms-
length, on a sample basis, as part of our
evaluation of the disclosure.

Assessing management evaluation of
compliance with the provisions of Section
177 and Section 188 of the companies
Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 2015.

Evaluating the disclosures through
reading of statutory information, books
and records and other documents
obtained during the course of our audit.

C.La.lmsand. ewés_\';hﬁnq_tg_maﬁn_n_aﬂiﬁq;t-ﬂm (as described in note 44 of the standalone |

Ind AS financial statements)

The Company has disclosed in Note 44 contingent

liabilities of Rs. 3,015 crores in respect of
disputed claims/ levies under various tax and
legal matters and Rs. 2,160 crores towards
Claims related to Forest development tax/ fee. In
addition, the Company has assessed several
claims as 'Remote’ and hence are not required to
be disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Taxation and litigation exposures have been
identified as a key audit matter due to:

Significance of these amounts and large
number of disputed matters with various
authorities.

Our audit procedures included the following I

e Understanding and assessing the internal
control environment relating to the
identification, recognition and
measurement of provisions for disputes,
potential claims and litigation, and
contingent liabilities.

Obtaining the details of legal and tax
disputed matters and evaluation made by
the management and assessed
management'’s position through
discussions on both the probability of

F-839
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success in significant cases, and the
e Significant judgement and assumptions magnitude of any potential loss.
required by management in assessing the
exposure of each case to evaluate whether e Read external legal opinions (where
there is a need to set up a provision and considered  necessary) and  other
measurement of exposures as well as the evidence to corroborate management'’s
disclosure of contingent liabilities. assessment of the risk profile in respect
of legal claims.

We focused on this matter because of the

potential financial impact on the financial
statements. Additionally, the treatment of
taxation and litigation cases require significant
judgement due to the complexity of the cases,
timescales for resolution and involvement of
various authorities.

We involved tax specialists to assist us in
evaluating tax positions taken by
management.

We assessed the relevant disclosures
made in the standalone Ind AS financial

statements for compliance in accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS 37.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
.- whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h

<

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 44 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;
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ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Partner i M
Membership Number: 105938 A=y

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

®

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Allfixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in accordance
with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company except for

i. leasehold land aggregating to Rs. 67 crores wherein the lease deed has expired. As explained
to us, the Company is in the process of converting the title into freehold as per the lease cum
sale agreement.

ii. freehold land aggregating to Rs. 9 crores as noted below for which title deeds were not
available with the Company and hence we are unable to comment on the same

| 1l As at March 31, 2019

| Nature of immovable Property UL L o | (Rs. in Crores)

| of Cases | Gross Block | Net Block

. Land located at Maharashtra i 12 9 9

(i) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the

frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them and no material
discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,

secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section

185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are interested
and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given
have been complied with by the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules

made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act, related to the manufacture of its products, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.
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(vii) (@) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales- tax,
wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess on account of any
dispute, are as follows:

The Central Excise | Excise 98 : 1995-2015 | High Court

Act, 1944 Duty | 455 | 1997-2018 | Central Excise Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT)

21 1998-2016 | Asst.
all Commissioner/Commissioner |
The Custom Act, Custom | 185 | 1995-2012 © High Court

1962 Duty | 354 | 2009-2018 | Central Excise Service Tax
Appeliate Tribunal (CESTAT)

| 12 12014-2017 | Commissioner

Karnataka VAT, VAT 2 | 2006-2008 | Assistant Commissioner
2003 | o
The Central Sales | CST 29 | 2011-2012 | High Court
Tax Act, 1956 3312012-2013 | Commissioner
Chapter V of the Service 162 | 2004-2018 | Central Excise Service Tax
Finance Act, 1994 | Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT)
0.15 | 2008-2018 | Commissioner
!income Tax Act, | Income 14 | 2014-2015 | Commissioner Il
1961 Tax |1}

* Net of amounts paid under protest.

The above table does not include cases decided in favour of the Company for which the
department has preferred an appeal at higher levels amounting to Rs. 616 crores.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

(ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were
raised. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer (including debt instruments)

“==_ and hence not commented upon.
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Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
officers and empioyees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act whereever applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

T LN
F

per Vikram Mehta «| mumMBAIL %8
Partner % )
Membership Number: 105938

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: 24 May 2019
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of JSW Steel Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW Steel Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these standalone
Ind AS financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements may become inadeqguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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per Vikram Mehta | ; MUMBAI
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Membership Number: 105938

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2019
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il Steel Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Rs. in crores
Notes As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
| ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 49,245 49,503
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 9,577 3,071
(c) Intangible assets 6 172 65
(d) Intangible assets under development 344 321
(e) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 7 4,853 3,848
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 1,424 1,030
(ii) Loans 9 7,674 5,165
(iii) Other financial assets 10 45 746
(g) Current tax assets {net) 195 250
{h) Other non-current assets 11 3,364 2,299
Total non-current assets 76,893 66,298
Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 10,599 10,082
(b) Financial assets
(i} Trade receivables 13 6,746 4,692
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 14 5,258 451
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 15 422 150
(iv) Loans 9 136 158
(v) Derivative Assets 16 228 147
(vi) Other financial assets 10 2,621 503
(c) Other current assets 11 1,999 3,070
Total current assets 28,009 19,253
Total Assets 104,902 85,551
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 (Continued)

Rs.in crores

Notes As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

It EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 301 302
(b) Other equity 18 34,861 27,605
Total equity 35,162 27,907
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 26,748 29,551
(i) Other financial liabilities 20 1,015 698
(b) Provisions 21 226 115
(c) Deferred tax liabilities{net) 22 3,270 2,071
(d) Other non-current liabilities 23 4,083 4
Total non-current liabilities 35,342 32,439
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 5,368 2,172
(i} Trade payables 25
(a) Total outstanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 30 10
(b) ;:);aslmzl:ltzt:tr::g:igs,egues of creditors other than micro 13,022 13,078
(iii) Derivative Liabilities 26 332 90
(iv) Other financial liabilities 27 13,786 7,111
(b) Provisions 21 52 111
(c) Other current liabilities 28 1,616 1,381
(d) Current tax liabilities(net) 192 352
Total current liabilities 34,398 25,205
Total liabilities 69,740 57,644
Total equity and liabilities 104,902 85,551

See accompanying notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm Reg. No.: 324982E/E300003

e

Partner
Membership No.:105938 |

Place: Mumbai
Date : 24 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L VM YN

RAJEEV PAI SAJJAN JINDAL
Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director

ﬁ/‘f:\’ ;’Lf—-zw:o:o-im

SESHAGIRI RAO M.V.S

Company Secretary Jt.Managing Director & Group CFO

1CSI Membership No. FCS 9407 DIN 00029136
Place: Mumbai
Date : 24 May 2019
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

_‘ Steel Limited

Rs. in crores
Notes For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018*
| Revenue from operations 29 76,727 67,723
1] Other income 30 519 213
Il Total income (1 + 1} 77,246 67,936
v Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 39,589 35,995
Purchases of stock-in-trade 498 1,063
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 31 (188) 412
Employee benefits expense 32 1,400 1,260
Finance costs 33 3,708 3,591
Depreciation and amortization expense 34 3,397 3,054
Excise duty expense 1,259
Other expenses 35 17,025 13,993
Total expenses 65,429 60,627
v Profit before exceptional items and tax (llI-1V) 11,817 7,309
\'/] Exceptional items (refer note 49) 234
Vil Profit before tax (V-VI) 11,817 7,075
VIl Tax expense/(benefit): 22
Current tax 2,348 1,578
Deferred tax 1,210 872
3,558 2,450
IX  Profit for the year (VII-VIiI) 8,259 4,625
e LA -
-3‘9,(‘ =247
Ilr." Lk
L" MUMBAI | ® =
B . d__.:*
w, kS

e T
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W Steel Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (Continued)

Rs. in crores
Notes For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018*
X  Other comprehensive income
i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = = :
{a) Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans (15) (3)
{b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 4 82
ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or |oss_ _5 _1
Total (A) (6) 80
B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments 31 (341)
(b) Changes in Foreign Currency Mretary Item translation difference (49) (33)
___account (FCMITDA) - - -
ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 6 130
Total (B) (12) (244)
Total Other cﬂnprehensive income nlos;(Am) (18) (164_)
; Total comprehensive income / (loss) (IX + X) 8,241 4,46_1
Xl Earnings per equity share of Re. 1 each o 37 - -
Basic (in Rs.) 34.35 19.24
34.17 ]m

Diluted (in Rs.)

* Restated (refer note 29( ¢ ))
See accompanying notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.: 324982E/£300003

per VIKRAM MEHTA

Partner
Membership No.:105938

Place: Mumbai
Date : 24 May 2019

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
1CSI Membership No. FCS 9407

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(o ’/WM e

RAIEEV PAI SAJIAN JINDAL

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00017762

d
¥ —
i SESHAGIRI RAO M.V.S

Jt.Managing Director & Group CFO
DIN 00029136

Place: Mumbai

Date : 24 May 2019
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* Steel Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Rs. in crores

For the year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

11,817

7,075

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
—

3,397

3,054

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (net)

124

Gain on sale of financial investments designated as FVTPL
Interest income

(10)

(16)

(239)

(176)

Gain arising of financial instruments designated as FVTPL
Unwinding of interest on financial assets carried at amortised cost

Loss arising from Financial instruments designated as FVTPL

(8)
(B31)
18

30

(©)

Dividend Income

(224)

(5)

Interest expense

3,452

3,442

Share based payment expense

50

28

Export obligation deferred income amortisation

Unrealised exchange gain/(loss)

Allowance for doubtful debts, loans & advances

(160)

(67)

201
132

44
381

Government grant - GST incentive income

(53)

Non cash expenditure

Operating profit before working capital ch

6,590
18,407

6,777
13,852

Adjustments for :

(Increase) in inventories

(517)

(812)

(Increase) in trade receivables

{2,056)

(661)

(Increase} in other assets
Increase in trade payable and other liabilities

——

(924)
3,609

(1,339)
2,325

Increase in provisions

38

16

150

(471)

Cash flow from operations

18,557

13,381

Income taxes paid {net of refund received)

(2,453)

(1,207)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

16,104

12,174

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant & equipment, intangible assets
including under development

(7,902)

(3,776)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment

31

7

Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures including advances and
preference shares

(1,237)

(175)

Sale of other non-current investments in equity instruments through
FVTOCI

50

Purchase of current investments

(8,340)

(7,804)

Sale of current investments

Bank deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net)

8,350
(268)

8,120
169

Loans given to related parties

(3,317)

(2,858)

Loans repaid by related parties

877

Interest received

202

178

Dividend received

224

5

Net cash used in investing activities [LE]

(11,330)
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il Steel Limited

Cash flow from financing activities

For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Proceeds from sale of treasury shares 49
Payment for purchase of treasury shares (153) (76)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 6,017 5,571
Repayment of non-current borrowings (4,244) (4,7&1)
Proceeds from/Repayment of current borrowings (net) 3,196 {2,703)
Repayment of finance lease obligation (365) S ~(296)
Interest paid (3,532) (3,417)
Dividend paid (including corporate dividend tax) (886) (655)
_Net cash used in financing activities (C) 33 (6,301)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents(A+B+C) 4,807 (261)
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balances 451 712
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balances (note 14) 5,258 - 451
Reconciliations part of cash flows
Rs. in crores
Particulars 1 April 18 Cash Foreign Changes New Other 31 March 19
flows(net) exchange in fair leases
(Gain)/Loss values
Borrowings other than finance 29,427 1,773 (70) 39 31,941
lease obligation {including
Current maturities of long
term borrowing included in
other financial liabilities note
27)
Finance Lease Obligations 4,582 (365) 411 4,628
(including Current maturities)
Borrowings (Current) 2,172 3,196 5,368
i ]
" _ﬁ-'l

F-764

F-856



_Jﬁ" Steel Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 {Continued)

Particulars

Borrowings other than finance

lease obligation (including
Current maturities of long
term borrowing included in
other financial liabilities note
7

Finance Lease Obligations
lincludesg Current myseiis |
Borrowigs |Curiissd]

(296)

i1.703|

Rs. in crores
Cash Foreign Changes New Other 31 March 18
flows(net) exchange in fair leases
blisn)/Loss values
797 89 (52) 52 29,427
22 (1) 4,582
2,172

Other comprises of Upfront Fees Amortization and Interest Cost accrual on preference shares.

Notes:

1. The cash flow statement is prepared using the “indirect method” set out in IND AS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows.

2. The Company has acquired property, plant and equipment of Rs. 411 crores (previous year Rs. 22 crores) on finance lease

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.: 324982E/E300003

g

per VIKRAM MEHTA

Partner
Membership No.:105938

Place: Mumbai
Date : 24 May 2019

2 il

RAJEEV PAI
Chief Financial Officer

Ll 2x

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. FCS 9407

Place: Mumbai
Date : 24 May 2019
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

[/\-—« el
SAJJAN JINDAL
L] & Managing Director
DIN 00017762
—
— - —.-: _'_ﬂ

; SESHAGIRI RAO M.V.S

Jt.Managing Director & Group CFO
DIN 00029136



m‘ Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

General Information

JSW Steel Limited (“the Company”) is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of Iron and Steel
Products.

The Company is an integrated manufacturer of diverse range of steel products with its manufacturing facilities located
at Vijaynagar Works in Karnataka, Dolvi Works in Maharashtra and Salem works in Tamil Nadu.

JSW Steel Limited is a public limited company incorporated in India on March 15, 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956
and listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is JSW
Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051.

Significant Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirement of Division Il of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedule IIl),as
applicable to standalone financial statement.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended as on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter
referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements” or “financial statements”).

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 May, 2019.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments measured at fair values at the end of each reporting year, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in
to account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 102, teasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2, or 3 based on the
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair

] r . . . . .
4 Wil fagiarements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

3

VMUMBAI

i
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il Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

e Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Financial Statement is presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest crores except when otherwise stated.
Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

e itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle. it
is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

e itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

e itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

e itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

e itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at
the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.
lll. Revenue recognition

A. Sale of Goods

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives,
or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue excludes any
amount collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it
is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product is transferred to the customer. In contracts
where freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a separate
performance obligation and revenue is recognized when such freight services are rendered.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the Company accounts for individual products and
2 separately if they are distinct — i.e. if a product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it. The consideration is allocated between separate products and services
in the arrangement based on their stand-alone selling prices. Revenue from sale of by products are included in revenue.
Revenue from sale of power is recognised when delivered and measured based on the bilateral contractual arrangements.

Contract balances

i) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration including Trade receivables

i) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract including Advance received from Customer

iii) Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer
and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer including volume
rebates and discounts. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

B. Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

IV. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the
Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
tir#il in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
% on straight-line basis over the lease term
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The Company as a lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the Standalone balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Company's general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the years in which they are incurred.

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits
accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are
incurred.

Arrangements in the nature of lease

The Company enters into agreements, comprising a transaction or series of related transactions that does not take the
legal form of a lease but conveys the right to use the asset in return for a payment or series of payments. In case of such
arrangements, the Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 17 — Leases to the lease element of the arrangement.
For the purpose of applying the requirements under Ind AS 17 —- Leases, payments and other consideration required by
the arrangement are separated at the inception of the arrangement into those for lease and those for other elements.

V. Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which it
operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting year, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise
except for:

> exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

» exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below

the policy on hedge accounting in 2 (XVIll) (B) (g));
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

VI

Vil

» exchange difference arising on settlement / restatement of long-term foreign currency monetary items
recognized in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2016 prepared under previous GAAP, are
capitalized as a part of the depreciable fixed assets to which the monetary item relates and depreciated over
the remaining useful life of such assets. If such monetary items do not relate to acquisition of depreciable fixed
assets, the exchange difference is amortised over the maturity year / upto the date of settlement of such
monetary item, whichever is earlier and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The un-amortised
exchange difference is carried under other equity as “Foreign currency monetary item translation difference
account” net of tax effect thereon, where applicable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs
incurred on that borrowing during the year less any interest income earned on temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the funds for obtaining
a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset.

Borrowing Cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded
as an adjustment to the finance cost.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the years in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or when
performance obligations are met.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest and effect of this favorable interest is treated as a
government grant. The Loan or assistance is initially recognized at fair value and the government grant is measured as
the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates and
recognised to the income statement immediately on fulfillment of the performance obligations. The loan is
subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

T
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Vill. Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit

method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting year. Re-measurement,

comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan

assets {excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit

recognised in other comprehensive income in the year in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other

comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past

service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the year of a plan amendment or when the company recognizes

corresponding restructuring cost whichever is earlier. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net

defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

¥» service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

» netinterest expense or income; and

» re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
in the year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up
to the reporting date.

IX. Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value
uity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-
says are set out in note 38.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting year, the Company revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-
settled employee benefits reserve.

The Company has created an Employee Benefit Trust for providing share-based payment to its employees. The Company
uses the Trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The Trust
buys shares of the Company from the market, for giving shares to employees. The Company treats Trust as its extension
and shared held by the Trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from Equity. No gain
or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in capital
reserve. Share options exercised during the reporting year are satisfied with treasury shares.

Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an deferred tax asset if there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the

Bability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
end of the reporting year
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

XI. Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any
import duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for
qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalised as the activities
undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under construction account. At the point when an asset
is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and
any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised where the asset is available for use but incapable of operating at
normal levels until a year of commissioning has been completed. Revenue (net of cost) generated from production
during the trial period is capitalised.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative purposes,
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised
in the financial statements on transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost
as at the date of transition.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets {(other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed
miule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following categories of assets, in whose case the life of
has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the
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estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

Class of assets | Years
Plant and equipment 8 to 40 years
Work-rolls (shown under Plant and equipment) 1-5years

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

Freehold land and leasehold land where the lease is convertible to freehold land under lease agreements at future dates
at no additional cost, are not depreciated.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from the overhaul. The
carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss if the next
overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Xil. Intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumutated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Class of assets Years
Computer Software & Licenses | 3-5 years |

Mining assets are amortised over the useful life of the mine or lease period whichever is lower

The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised ason transition date,
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of transition date.

Xlil.  Mining Assets

Exploration and evaluation

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred after obtaining the mining right or the legal right to explore are capitalised
exploration and evaluation assets {intangible assets) and stated at cost less impairment. Exploration and evaluation
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The Company measures its exploration and evaluation assets at cost and classifies as Property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets according to the nature of the assets acquired and applies the classification consistently. To the extent
that tangible asset is consumed in developing an intangible asset, the amount reflecting that consumption is capitalised as
a part of the cost of the intangible asset.

Exploration expenditure includes all direct and allocated indirect expenditure associated with finding specific mineral
resources which includes depreciation and applicable operating costs of related support equipment and facilities and other
costs of exploration activities:

Acquisition costs - costs associated with acquisition of licenses and rights to explore, including related professional fees.
General exploration costs - costs of surveys and studies, rights of access to properties to conduct those studies (e.g., costs
incurred for environment clearance, defense clearance, etc.), and salaries and other expenses of geologists, geophysical
crews and other personnel conducting those studies.

Costs of exploration drilling and equipping exploration - Expenditure incurred on the acquisition of a license interest is
initially capitalised on a license-by-license basis. Costs are held, undepleted, within exploration and evaluation assets until
such time as the exploration phase on the license area is complete or commercial reserves have been discovered.

Stripping cost

Developmental stripping costs in order to obtain access to quantities of mineral reserves that will be mined in future
periods are capitalised as part of mining assets. Capitalisation of developmental stripping costs ends when the
commercial production of the mineral reserves begins.

Production stripping costs are incurred to extract the ore in the form of inventories and/or to improve access to an
additional component of an ore body or deeper levels of material. Production stripping costs are accounted for as
inventories to the extent the benefit from production stripping activity is realized in the form of inventories.

Such costs are presented within mining assets. After initial recognition, stripping activity assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment. The expected useful life of the identified component of the ore body is used

to depreciate or amortise the stripping asset.

Site restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs:

Provision is made for costs associated with restoration and rehabilitation of mining sites as soon as the obligation to
incur such costs arises. Such restoration and closure costs are typical of extractive industries and they are normally
incurred at the end of the life of the mine. The costs are estimated on the basis of mine closure plans and the estimated
discounted costs of dismantling and removing these facilities and the costs of restoration are capitalised. The provision
for decommissioning assets is based on the current estimates of the costs for removing and decommissioning
production facilities, the forecast timing of settlement of decommissioning liabilities and the appropriate discount rate.
A corresponding provision is created on the liability side. The capitalised asset is charged to profit or loss over the life
of the asset through depreciation over the life of the operation and the provision is increased each period via unwinding
the discount on the provision. Management estimates are based on local legislation and/or other agreements. The
actual costs and cash outflows may differ from estimates because of changes in laws and regulations, changes in prices,
analysis of site conditions and changes in restoration technology. Details of such provisions are set out in note 21.
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XIV. Impairment of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

XV. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labor and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

XVI. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
ivable can be measured reliably
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Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is
considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are shown at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investment
in greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the
difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

A. Financial assets
a) Recognition and initial measurement

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, which is the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

b) Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at
FVTPL:
e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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<)

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised at
FVTPL;
e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit
and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any gains and losses arising
on remeasurement recognized in statement of profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in statement of profit or
loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'other income' line item.
Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when:

e The Company's right to receive the dividends is established,

e Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity,

e The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend

can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party
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d) Impairment

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash
or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected
credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result
if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over
the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous
year, but determines at the end of a reporting year that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous year, the Company again measures the
loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of
the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has
used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on
a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt
instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced
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e) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in statement of profit or loss and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

a) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

b) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.

c) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at

FVTPL.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
e It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages

together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
e itis aderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
if:

& such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise;

e thefinancial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire

combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged; cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

0 fi ial liabilities:
The Company enters into deferred payment arrangements {acceptances) whereby overseas lenders such as banks and
other financial institutions make payments to supplier’s banks for import of raw materials and property, plant and
equipment. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date providing working
capital benefits. These arrangements are in the nature of credit extended in normal operating cycle and these
arrangements for raw materials are recognized as Acceptances {under trade payables) and arrangements for property,
plant and equipment are recognised as other financial liabilities. Interest borne by the company on such arrangements is
accounted as finance cost. Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty
of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss .

d) Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate, commodity
price and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, commodity forward contracts,
interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting year. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge item.

e) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract
to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate,
index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that
variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
ract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
of the fair value through profit or loss.
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If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not
separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire
hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded
at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging
instruments.

f) Hedge accounting

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-
derivatives in respect of foreign currency, interest rate and commodity risk, as either cash flow hedge, fair value hedge.
Hedges of foreign currency risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to hedged
risk.

(i) Fair value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument and the
change in the hedged item attributable to hedged risk are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item
relating to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, the fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that
date.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion as
described above are reclassified to profit or loss in the years when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line
as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains or losses are transferred from equity (but not as a reclassification
adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no
r qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or
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loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

XIX. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

XX. Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted
for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury
shares held by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees.

3. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements
In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the Company is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision
and future year, if the revision affects current and future year.

A) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are
dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based
on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. This reassessment may
result in change in depreciation and amortisation expected in future periods.
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i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint- ventures and associates

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are impaired requires an
estimate in the value in use of investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the
future commaodity prices, capacity utilization of plants, operating margins, mineable resources and availability of
infrastructure of mines, discount rates and other factors of the underlying businesses / operations of the investee
companies as more fully described in note 50. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the
above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of investments.

iii) Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized. The
cases which have been determined as remote by the Company are not disclosed.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements unless when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

iv) Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial statements
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

v) Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

MAT is assessed on book profits adjusted for certain items as compared to the adjustments followed for assessing
regular income tax under normal provisions. MAT paid in excess of regular income tax during a year can be set off
against regular income taxes within a specified period in which MAT credit arises, subject to the limits prescribed.

B) Critical accounting judgements

i) Control over JSW Realty & infrastructure Private Limited (RIPL)
RIPL has developed a residential township in Vijayanagar, Karnataka on the land taken on lease from the Company
for a period of 30 years and provides individual housing units on rent to the employees of the Company or other
group companies. RIPL is not allowed to sub-let or assign its rights under the arrangement without prior written
consent of the Company. Though the Company does not hold any ownership interest in RIPL, the Company has
concluded that the Company has practical ability to direct the relevant activities of RIPL unilaterally, considering
RIPL’s dependency on the Company for funding significant portion of its operation through subscription to 74.57%
# share capital amounting to Rs. 199 crore issued by RIPL and significant portion of RIPL’s activities
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

i) Separating payments of lease from the other payments
If an arrangement contains a lease, the parties to the arrangement shall apply the requirements of Ind AS 17 to the
lease element. Therefore, the Company is required to separate payments and other consideration required by the
arrangement into those for the lease and for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

However, Management has concluded that it is impracticable to separate both the elements reliably and has
recognized an asset and a liability at an amount equal to the carrying value of the specified asset in the books of the
lessor. Subsequently, the liability has been reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance charges on the
liability recognized using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate of interest over the tenure of the arrangement.
The total payments less payments made towards lease obligation and imputed finance charges have been considered
to be the consideration for elements other than lease.

In case of arrangements which are identified to be in the nature of finance lease, the management concluded that
it is impracticable to derive the relative fair values of lease and other elements of the arrangement and has
accordingly determined the consideration for elements other than lease as a residual post appropriation of lease
payments derived based on lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of interest on the lease obligation corresponding
to the respective gross asset values in the books of lessor.

iii) Joint control over Monnet Ispat and Energy Limited

The consortium of JSW Steel Limited and AION Investments Private Il Limited. completed the acquisition of Monnet
Ispat and Energy Limited (“MIEL”) through their jointly controlled entity Creixent Special Steels Limited (“CSSL”") on
31 August 2018. The Company has made an investment of Rs. 375 crores through equity and redeemable
preference shares in CSSL to acquire joint control in MIEL and have an effective shareholding of 23.1% in MIEL.

As per the Shareholding agreement, all the relevant activities of CSSL that affect the Company’s variable returns
from its involvement with CSSL/ MIEL have to be decided unanimously by a Steering Committee on which the
Company has representation and thus the Company has concluded that it has joint control over CSSL.

iv) Incentives under the State Industrial Policy
The Company units at Dolvi in Maharashtra and Vijayanagar in Karnataka are eligible for incentives under the
respective State Industrial Policy and have been availing incentives in the form of VAT deferral / CST refunds.
The State Government of Maharashtra (‘GOM’) vide its Government Resolution (GR) issued the modalities for
sanction and disbursement of incentives, under GST regime, and introduced certain new conditions / restrictions
for accruing incentive benefits granted to the Company including denying incentives in certain cases.

The management has evaluated the impact of other conditions imposed and has obtained legal advice on the
tenability of these changes in the said scheme. Based on such legal advice, the Company has also made the
representation to GOM and believes that said Incentives would continue to be made available to the Company
under the GST regime, since the new conditions are not tenable legally and will contest these changes
appropriately.

Accordingly, the Company has recognized grant income without giving effect to the above restrictions and the
cumulative amount receivable towards the same is considered to be good and recoverable.
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ailew Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Notes!
Rs.in crores

Description As at 31 March As at 31 March
bl — 2019 2018
a) Freehold land which is yet to be registered in the Company's name Acre 19 19

Deemed cost 9 9
b) Freehold land and buildings which has been/agreed to be Deemed cost 294 288

hypothecated/mortgaged to lenders of related parties

c) Other adjustments comprises:
Borrowing cost Rs.in Crores 25 23
Foreign exchange loss / {gain) Rs. in Crores 237 19

d) For details of assets given on operating lease, refer note 47

e} For details of assets given on finance lease, refer note 48

f)  Certain property, plant and equipment are pledged against borrowings, the details relating to which have been
described in Note 19 and Note 24.

g) The title deeds of immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company except for leasehold land aggregating to Rs. 67 crores wherein the lease deed has expired and the Company
has a right to convert the land into freehold land subject to complying with certain conditions. The Company is in the
process of converting the title into freehold as per the lease cum sale agreement.

h)  Property, plant and equipment includes proportionate share (50%) of assets under joint operation as below:

Rs.in crores
Particulars Buildings (Owned) Plant and Equipment (Owned)
Cost/deemed cost
At 1 April 2017 476 7
Additions
At 31 March 2018 476 7
Additions
At 31 March 2019 476 7
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2017 32 1
Depreciation 16 1
At 31 March 2018 48 2
Depreciation 16 1
At 31 March 2019 64 3
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 412 4
At 31 March 2018 428 5

5. Capital work in progress includes exchange fluctuation loss {including regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs) of Rs
307 crores {previous year Rs. 54 crores) and borrowing cost of Rs. 166 crores (previous year Rs. 50 crores) capitalised
during the year.

F-879



_“" Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

6. Intangible assets

Rs. in crores
Particulars Computer License Mining Total
software fees Assets

Cost/deemed Cost

At 1 April 2017 73 22 95
Additions 20 4 18 42
At 31 March 2018 93 26 18 137
Additions 28 105 133
At 31 March 2019 121 26 123 270
Accumulated amortization

At 1 April 2017 36 8 44
Amortization 20 7 1 28
At 31 March 2018 56 15 1 72
Amortization 15 4 7 26
At 31 March 2019 71 19 7 98
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 50 7 115 172
At 31 March 2018 37 11 17 65
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il Stecl Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Note:

(a) Sale of shares to Amba River Coke Limited {14,56,000 shares) and JSW Steel Coated Products Limited (46,55,000 shares).
Sale of 61,11,000 shares at fair value of Rs. 82.21 which is the quoted price on date of sale, resulting in cumulative gain
recognized Rs. 36 crores which is transferred from Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income to Retained
Earnings.

9. Loans (Unsecured)

- Rs. in crores
LEEN G Asat31March2019  Asat31March2018
cu':":e':l; Current cﬁtr)rr;;t Current
Loans
to related parties* = 8,070 47 5,400 ry
to other body corporate 9 9
Security deposits 280 89 288 154
Less : Allowance for doubtful loans (685) = (532)
Total 7,674 136 5,165 158
Note :
Loans Receivable Considered good - Secured =
Loans Receivable Considered good - Unsecured 7,674_ 136 5,165 158
Loans Receivable which have significant increase in Credit Risk
Loans Receivable — credit impaired — — - -
Loans and advances to other body corporate 9 9 ¥
Loans and advances to related parties 676 523 —

*Loans are given for business purpose. refer note 43 for terms of Loan

Movement in Aliowance for doubtful loans

As at 31 March 2019

Opening Balance 532
Towards Incremental Loan given during the year (refer note 20) 153
Closing Balance 685

The Company had recognised financial guarantee obligation in the earlier years towards lenders of a subsidiary, against which
incremental loans have been advanced to the subsidiary during the current year. Consequently, the financial guarantee
obligation has been released and basis of the recoverability of the said loans provision for doubtful allowances has been
recognised resulting in net impact of Rs. Nil in the statement of profit and loss.
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p‘! Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

and
Rs. in crores
Name of Company As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Maximum Maximum
amot.mt Amount amot_mt Amount
I outstandin, L outstandin
during the & during the e
year year
JSW Steel (Netherlands) B.V 1,364 1,318 27 525
JSW Natural Resources Limited 146 124 . 190 115
Inversiones Eroush Limitada 773 744 694 694
Periama Holdings, LLC 5,206 4,936 3988 3,988
JSW Steel UK Limited 11 10 10 10
Arima Holding Ltd. # # # #
_Lakeland Securities Limited # # # #
Erebus Limited # # # #
Monnet Ispat and Energy Limited 125 125
JSW Global Business Solutions 18 14 =
Acero Junction Holdings 832 799
# represents amounts below Rs. 0.5 crore
10. Others financial assets (Unsecured, Considered Good)
- _______Rs.incrores
_Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Non = Current Non - Current
current current
Export_benefits and entitlements 1 70 1 53
Insurance claim receivable 43 43
Application money paid towards securities 1 121
Government grant incentive income receivable (refer note 29(a)) 1,806 234
Interest receivable on loans to related parties 637 581
Indirect tax balances Refund due 73 184
Others 35 32
Total 45 2,621 746 503
Iy l
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* Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

11. Other assets (Unsecured)

Rs. in crores
Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Non — current Current  Non - current Current
Capital advances 1,689 ?3?
Less : Allowance for doubtful advances (3) (3)
Advance to suppliers 571 1,135 174 1,679
Export benefits and entitlements 56 84 56 106
Security deposits 34 118 33 51
Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits 1,208 529 1,185 1,159
Prepayments and others 63 133 46 75
Less : Allowance for doubtful advances (254) (125)
Total 3,364 1,999 2,299 3,070
Other Assets constitute:
Capital advances
Considered good — 1,686 930 -
Considered doubtful, provided 3 3 =
Others
Considered good 1,678 1,999 1,369 3,070
Considered doubtful, provided
Advances to suppliers o 250 121
Prepayment and others 2: — 2
Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits 2 2 ___ %
12. Inventories
—. Rs. in crores
Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Raw materials {at cost) 4,975 4,774
Work-in-progress (at cost) 476 6390
Semi-finished/ finished goods (at cost or net realisable value) 3,229 2,826
CI:)rsc;c):luction consumables, fuel stock and stores and spares (at 1,919 1,792
Total 10,599 10,082

Inventories have been pledged as security against certain bank borrowings, details relating to which has been described in note
19 and note 24

Details of Stock-in-transit
Rs. in crores

_Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Raw materials L551 1,867
Production consumables and stores and s ; 146 189
Total
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S Stecl Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

13. Trade receivables

Particulars

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

As at 31 March 2019

Rs. in crores

As at 31 March 2018

4,604

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 6,658
Receivabl . — ; p
‘(I;:jiet R?Scke ables which have significant increase in 160 160
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (72) (72)
T;de Receivables — credit impaired 10 6
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - (10) (6)
T_otal —— 6,746 4,692
Ageing of receivables that are past due
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
60-90 days 79 149
90-180 days 298 58
>180 digs 524 393
Total 901 600

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 7 to 60 days with or without security

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses an external credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's
credit guality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed once a year.

The Company does not generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty.

Trade receivables have been given as collateral towards borrowings details relating to which has been described in note 19

and note 24.

Credit risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in note 41 (8).
Trade receivables from related parties details has been described in note 43.

Trade receivables does not include any receivables from directors and officers of the company.

14. Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in crores

Particulars

Balances with Banks

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

188

In current accounts 420
) In te.rm deposit with maturity less than 3 months at 4,737 262
inception
Cheques on hand 100
Cash on hand 4k #
Total 5,258 451
# represents amounts below Rs. 0.5 crore

F 3
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il Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

15. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Earmarked balances in current accounts

Balances with Banks

In term deposit

with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12

months at inception

with maturity more than 12 months at inception

In margin money
Total

Rs. in crores

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
29 26

265 122

127 1

1 1

422 150

Earmarked bank balances are restricted in use and it relates to unclaimed dividend and Balances with banks held as margin

money for security against the guarantees.

16. Derivative Assets

Particulars

Rs. in crores

As at 31 March 2019

Forward contract
Commodity contract
Interest rate swap
Currency option
Total

17. Equity share capital

Particulars

Share capital
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of the par value of Re.1 each
(b) Issued and subscribed

(i) Outstanding at the beginning of the
year, fully paid up

(ii) Less: Treasury shares held under ESOP
Trust (refer note (a) below)

(iii) Outstanding at the end of the year, fully
paid up

(c) Equity shares forfeited (amount
originally paid-up)
Total

As at 31 March 2018

201 82
6 8
20 37
1 20
228 147
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 31 March 2018
2019
Number of Shares Amount (Rs. in crores)
60,15,00,00,000 60,15,00,00,000 6,015 6,015
2,41,72,20,440 2,41,72,20,440 242 242
(1,55,08,976) (1,09,88,860) (2) (1)
2,40,17,11,464 2,40,62,31,580 240 241
61 61
301 302
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il Steel Limnited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

a)

b)

c)

d)

NOTE FOR SHARES HELD UNDER ESOP TRUST:

The Company has created an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) for providing share-based payment to its employees.
ESOP is the primary arrangement under which shared plan service incentives are provided to certain specified employees
of the Company and it’s subsidiaries in India. For the purpose of the scheme, the Company purchases shares from the
open market under ESOP trust. The Company treats ESOP trust as its extension and shares held by ESOP trust are treated

as treasury shares.

For the details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) of the Company refer note 38.

Movement in treasury shares

Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2019 March 2018

Shares of Re. 1 each fully paid up held under Number of shares

ESOP Trust

Equity shares as at 1 April 1,09,88,860 1,42,35,750

Changes during the year 45,20,116 (32,46,890)

Equity shares as at 31 March 1,55,08,976 1,09,88,860

*Rs. 0.45 Crore @ Rs. (0.32) Crore

RIGHTS, PREFERENCES AND RESTRICTIONS ATTACHED TO EQUITY SHARES

As at 31 As at 31
March 2019 March 2018
Amount (Rs. in crores)

2
* @
1

The Company has a single class of equity shares having par value of Re. 1 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARE IN THE COMPANY ARE SET OUT BELOW

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

= No of shares % of shares No of shares % of shares
Equity shares
JFE Steel Internatiﬂal Europe BV 36,25,83,070 15.00% 36,25,83,070 15.00% —
JSW Holdings Limited 17,88,37,230 7.40% 17,73,06,230 7.34%

Vividh  Finvest  Private  Limited

(Formerly Vividh Consultancy & 14,19,95,690 5.87% 14,07,26,690 5.82%

Advisory Services Private Limited)

JSW Techno Projects Management Ltd ~ 24,73,28,450 10.23% 22,93,26,950 9.49%

SHARES ALLOTED AS FULLY PAID-UP PURSUANT TO CONTRACTS WITHOUT PAYMENT BEING RECEIVED IN CASH DURING
THE YEAR OF FIVE YEARS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE DATE OF THE BALANCE SHEET ARE AS UNDER:

NIL
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.*' Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

18. Other equity

Rs. in crores

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

General reserve — 9,895 — 10,278

Retained Earning = — 14,677 7,571

Other Comprehensive Iﬁne I
Equity instruments through o@r comprehensive T o 4?3 435
Income -

= Effective portion of cash flow hedges 33 13
Foreign currency monetary item translation (57) (25)
difference account (FCMITDA)

Other Reserves — o
Equity settled share based payment reserve 91 o 41
Capital reserve 3,585 o 3,585
Capital redemption reserve o 532 _149
Securities premium 5,417 5,417
Debenturiedemption reserve - 285 E

Total 34,861 27,605

(i) General reserve

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of
net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers
was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10.00% of the paid-up capital of the
Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable reserves for that
year.

Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified
percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn and the Company can optionally transfer
any amount from the surplus of profit or loss to the General reserves. This reserve is utilised in accordance with
the specific provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(ii) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement loss / (gain)
on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained
earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

(iii) Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investment in equity instrument in
other comprehensive income. This amount will be reclassified to retained earnings on derecognition of equity
instrument.

(iv) Effective portion of cash flow hedges

Effective portion of cash flow hedges represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on
changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges, which shall be reclassified to
profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a basis adjustment to
the non-financial hedged item, consistent with the Company accounting policies.
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#llar Stec) Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix}

Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account (FCMITDA)

The Company has continued with the policy adopted for accounting for exchange differences arising from
translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the standalone financial statements
prepared under previous GAAP for the year ended 31 March 2016. The reserve pertains to exchange differences
relating to long term foreign currency monetary items in so far as they do not relate to acquisition of
depreciable capital assets, which are accumulated in “Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference
Account” and amortized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance year of such long term foreign
currency monetary item.

Equity settled share based payment reserve

The Company offers ESOP, under which options to subscribe for the Company’s share have been granted to
certain employees and senior management. The share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of
equity settled share based payments provided as part of the ESOP scheme.

Capital reserve
Reserve is primarily created on amalgamation as per statutory requirement. This reserve is utilised in
accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

Capital redemption reserve
Reserve is created for redemption of preference shares as per statutory requirement. This reserve is utilised in
accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium. This
reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies Act 2013. This reserve is utilised
in accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

Debenture redemption reserve

The Indian Companies Act requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve
(DRR) from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed. Companies are required to maintain 25% as a
reserve of outstanding redeemable debentures. Accordingly, the company creates DRR at 25% in the
penultimate year to the year in which the repayment obligation arises on the company. The amounts credited
to the debenture redemption reserve will not be utilised except to redeem debentures. On redemption the
amount will be reclassified to Retained Earnings.
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il Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

19. Borrowings (at amortised cost)
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Non -current Current Non -current  Current
Bonds (unsecured) 3,459 3,459 6,504
Debentures {secured) 2,000 1,141 3,141 563
Term loans
Secured 8,640 1,767 9,309 1,748
Unsecured 8,483 2,849 6,242 1,459
Deferred government loans (unsecured) 79 31 65 18
Other Loans
Finance Lease obligations (unsecured) 4,211 417 4,223 359
Preference Shares (unsecured) 231 195 383
26,872 9,895 29,679 4,530
Unamortised upfront fees on borrowing (124) (74) (128) (72)
26,748 9,821 29,551 4,458
e e oaas) )
Total 26,748 2 29,551 §
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il Steel Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

As at 31 March 2019
Non-Current Current
A.Bonds/Debentures
Bonds {Unsecured)

3,459
3,459
3,459 3,459
Debentures(secured)
1,000
1,000

400

As at 31 March 2018

Non-Current

3,252
3,252
6,504

1,000

1,000

400

Current

F-894

Terms of Repayments

4.75% Repayable on 12 November 2019
5.25% Repayable on 13 April 2022

10.02% secured NCDs of Rs. 10,00,000 each ar¢
redeemable in two tranches

a.Rs. 500 crores on 20 May 2023

b. Rs. 500 crores on 19 July 2023

10.34% secured NCDs of Rs. 10,00,000 each ar¢
redeemable in three tranches

a.Rs. 330 crores on 18 January 2022

b.Rs. 330 crores on 18 January 2023

C.Rs. 340 crores on 18 January 2024

9.72% secured NCDs of Rs. 10,00,000 each are
redeemable on 23 December 2019.
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